



STAFF REPORT

Report To: Board of Supervisors **Meeting Date:** December 30, 2021

Staff Contact: Aubrey Rowlett, Clerk Recorder

Agenda Title: For Possible Action: Discussion and possible action to adopt, on second reading, Bill No. 116, an ordinance revising various provisions of the Carson City Municipal Code (“CCMC”) governing the process by which election ward boundaries may be realigned, revising various CCMC provisions relating to meetings of the Board of Supervisors and repealing CCMC provisions describing districts of wards. (Aubrey Rowlett, arowlett@carson.org)

Staff Summary: The proposed ordinance, if adopted, would make various changes to CCMC Chapter 2.02 which establishes certain administrative provisions governing the Board of Supervisors, including the manner by which election ward boundaries may be realigned and the conduct of meetings of the Board of Supervisors.

Agenda Action: Ordinance - Second Reading **Time Requested:** 5 minutes

Proposed Motion

I move to adopt Bill No. 116, Ordinance No. _____.

Board's Strategic Goal

Efficient Government

Previous Action

On December 16, 2021, the Board of Supervisors introduced the ordinance on first reading by a vote of 5-0.

On December 6, 2011, the Board of Supervisors adopted Ordinance No. 2011-21, amending CCMC Chapter 2.02 to remove ward descriptions and providing that the four election ward boundaries must be adopted by resolution.

Background/Issues & Analysis

CCMC Chapter 2.02 contains various administrative provisions relating to the Board of Supervisors, including the manner by which election ward boundaries may be established and the conduct of meetings of the Board of Supervisors.

CCMC 2.02.010, which pertains to ward boundaries of Supervisors of the Board of Supervisors, was last amended in 2011 via the adoption of Ordinance No. 2011-21 to establish ward boundary realignments following the 2010 Federal Census population count. Currently, CCMC 2.02.010 provides, in pertinent part, that the boundaries as set forth in the Official Ward Map must be adopted by resolution of the Board of Supervisors and filed and recorded in the Office of the Carson City Clerk-Recorder. However, article 1, § 1.060 of the Carson City Charter expressly provides that the “boundaries of wards must be established and realigned, if necessary, by ordinance ...” Therefore, although Ordinance No. 2011-21 was properly adopted and the realignment of the ward boundaries in 2011 was made in compliance with the City Charter, the existing language in CCMC

2.02.010 authorizing the realignment of ward boundaries via the adoption of a resolution to change the Official Ward Map is inconsistent with the City Charter which requires the adoption of an ordinance. To remove this ambiguity in the CCMC language, this proposed ordinance revises CCMC 2.02.010 to clarify that the realignment of ward boundaries may only be effectuated through the adoption of an ordinance.

This proposed ordinance also makes various other clerical corrections to the existing language set forth in CCMC 2.02.010 as well as CCMC 2.02.040, which establishes provisions relating to the meetings of the Board of Supervisors. These clerical revisions mostly comprise non-substantive changes in text for grammatical clarity and consistency with current legislative drafting style and convention, but also update the official title of the ward map and the Board of Supervisors meeting room, which was recently renamed after the late Mayor Robert Crowell.

Finally, this proposed ordinance repeals CCMC 2.02.020, which correlates ward numbers to districts. CCMC 2.02.020 was adopted in 1974 and has since never been amended. Because election wards for the Supervisors have long been consecutively numbered as Ward One, Ward Two, Ward Three and Ward Four and correspond to the ward map, the reference to former districts corresponding to each of the four wards is now obsolete.

Applicable Statute, Code, Policy, Rule or Regulation

NRS Chapter 244; Articles 1 and 2 of the Carson City Charter

Financial Information

Is there a fiscal impact? No

If yes, account name/number:

Is it currently budgeted?

Explanation of Fiscal Impact:

Alternatives

Do not adopt the ordinance on second reading, or provide alternative direction, or both.

Attachments:

[Ordinance_Board_of_Supervisors_Admin_Provisions_Second_Reading .pdf](#)

Board Action Taken:

Motion: _____	1) _____	Aye/Nay
	2) _____	_____

(Vote Recorded By)

Summary: Revises various provisions relating to the Board of Supervisors.

BILL NO. 116

ORDINANCE NO. 2021 - _____

AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS; REVISING VARIOUS PROVISIONS GOVERNING THE PROCESS BY WHICH ELECTION WARD BOUNDARIES MAY BE REALIGNED; REVISING VARIOUS PROVISIONS RELATING TO MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS; REPEALING PROVISIONS DESCRIBING DISTRICTS OF WARDS; AND PROVIDING OTHER MATTERS PROPERLY RELATING THERETO.

The Board of Supervisors of Carson City do ordain:

SECTION I:

That Title 2 (ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL), CHAPTER 2.02 (BOARD OF SUPERVISORS), SECTION 2.02.010 (WARD BOUNDARIES) is hereby amended (**bold, underlined text** is added, ~~[stricken]~~ text is deleted) as follows:

2.02.010 – Ward boundaries. (art. 1, § 1.060 and art. 2, §§ 2.090, 2.100 and 2.110 of the Carson City Charter)

~~[H]~~ **There are hereby established in** Carson City ~~[there are hereby established four (4)]~~ **four (4)** contiguous election wards numbered consecutively as Ward One, Ward Two, Ward ~~[Three,]~~ **Three** and Ward Four ~~[and having]~~ **, with each ward corresponding to the alignment of** boundaries as ~~[shown on]~~ **depicted in** the Carson City, Nevada Official **Board of Supervisors** Ward ~~[Map, demonstrating boundaries along the jurisdictional boundaries of Carson City and variously named roads, streets, highways or landmarks to the centerline of each, which official Ward Map shall be:]~~ **Boundaries Map, which may be amended from time to time in accordance with article 1, § 1.060 of the Carson City Charter. Any ordinance and amendment to the Carson City, Nevada Official Board of Supervisors Ward Boundaries Map that realigns the boundaries of a ward must be:**

1. Adopted by ~~[resolution of]~~ the Carson City Board of ~~[Supervisors,]~~ **Supervisors in the manner prescribed by the Carson City Charter; and**
2. Filed and recorded ~~[with the Board's resolution in the official records]~~ **in the Office** of the Carson City ~~[Clerk Recorder as File No. 417563, Book No. 10, Page No. 2771, on the 1st day of December, 2011.]~~ **Clerk-Recorder and published on its official Internet website.**

SECTION II:

That Title 2 (ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL), CHAPTER 2.02 (BOARD OF SUPERVISORS), SECTION 2.02.040 (MEETINGS OF THE BOARD) is hereby amended (**bold, underlined text** is added, ~~[stricken]~~ text is deleted) as follows:

2.02.040 - Meetings of the ~~[board.] Board of Supervisors. (art. 2, §§ 2.050 and 2.090-2.110, inclusive, of the Carson City Charter; NRS 244.085)~~

1. ~~[Regular]~~ **Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, regular** meetings of the ~~[board of supervisors shall]~~ **Board of Supervisors must** be held in Carson City on the first and third ~~[Thursdays in]~~ **Thursday of** each calendar month, unless such day falls on a holiday or on a nonjudicial day, in which event the regular meeting ~~[shall]~~ **must** be held on the ~~[immediately following]~~ **next** judicial day. By a motion made in a ~~[property]~~ **properly** noticed meeting, the ~~[board]~~ **Board of Supervisors** may take action to change the date of ~~[a]~~ **an ensuing**, regularly scheduled ~~[future board]~~ meeting if ~~[the board]~~ :

(a) The Board of Supervisors finds that it is in the best interest of the public **to change the date;** and ~~[if the board acts to]~~

(b) The change in the meeting date ~~[at least twenty (20)]~~ **is made not less than 20** days before the date ~~[of]~~ **on which** the meeting ~~[to be changed.]~~ **is to occur.**

2. The official meeting place of the ~~[board of supervisors]~~ **Board of Supervisors** is the ~~[Sierra Room,]~~ **Robert 'Bob' Crowell Board Room, located at the** Carson City Community Center, 851 E. Williams Street, Carson City, Nevada.

3. The ~~[board of supervisors]~~ **Board of Supervisors** may, **as it deems necessary,** hold additional regular, work session or special meetings during ~~[a]~~ **any** calendar month ~~[as needed and may specify]~~ **by specifying** the **date,** time, place and purpose of ~~[the]~~ **any such** meeting in ~~[the meeting notice.]~~ **a notice properly made pursuant to applicable law.**

4. Nothing contained in this section ~~[prohibits the board of supervisors]~~ **shall be construed to prohibit the Board of Supervisors** from recessing a regularly scheduled meeting and continuing ~~[such]~~ **the** meeting to a later time and place ~~[certain, provided]~~ **certain if** such time and place are ~~[indicated in]~~ **established by** an appropriate motion made during the regularly scheduled meeting.

~~[5. The dates of the regular meetings of the board of supervisors for the month of January, 1997 are January 9th and January 23rd.]~~

SECTION III:

That Title 2 (ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL), CHAPTER 2.02 (BOARD OF SUPERVISORS), SECTION 2.02.020 (CREATION OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS) is hereby repealed with reservation of the section number as follows:

CCMC 2.02.020 [—Meetings of the board.] Reserved.

(Editor's note: Ord. No. 2021- , § III, adopted , repealed CCMC 2.02.020 – Creation of board of supervisors.)

SECTION IV

That no other provisions of Title 2 of the Carson City Municipal Code are affected by this ordinance.

PROPOSED on _____, 2021 by _____.

PASSED on _____, 2021 by the following vote:

AYES: _____

NAYS: _____

ABSENT: _____

LORI BAGWELL, Mayor

ATTEST:

AUBREY ROWLATT, Clerk-Recorder

This ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after the first day of January, 2022.

TEXT OF REPEALED SECTIONS

~~2.02.020 Creation of board of supervisors.~~

~~_____ In Carson City four (4) board of supervisors districts are hereby amended as follows:~~

~~1. District No. 1 shall correspond and be identical with the boundaries of Ward One in Section 2.02.010(1).~~

~~2. District No. 2 shall correspond and be identical with the boundaries of Ward Two in Section 2.02.010(2).~~

~~3. District No. 3 shall correspond and be identical with the boundaries of Ward Three in Section 2.02.010(3).~~

~~4. District No. 4 shall correspond and be identical with the boundaries of Ward Four in Section 2.02.010(4).~~